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Importance: High

Kia ora 
 
Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 (LGOIMA) Request
 
In response to your LGOIMA request received 17 May 2024 requesting the most recent risk
assessment/s of the use of glyphosate herbicides in Dunedin, please find attached the following:
 

Hazard control sheets for the use of chemicals and hazardous materials, and weed
spraying undertaken by the contractor (Delta). 

 
Job Risk Analysis (JRA) for weed control glyphosate granular herbicide and a copy of
information regarding vegetation control as part of DCC sealed and unsealed road
network maintenance contracts by the contractor (Fulton Hogan).

 
Also attached for your information is a copy of the Herbicides for Vegetation Control Report
presented to the Strategy, Planning and Engagement Committee on 13 February 2023 which
may be of interest.
 
I trust this answers your request.
 
Kā mihi
 
 
Rebecca Murray
Mana Whakahaere Kairuruku / Governance Support Officer
Governance Group

P  03 477 4000  |        | E rebecca.murray@dcc.govt.nz 
Te Kaunihera a Rohe o Ōtepoti - Dunedin City Council
50 The Octagon, Dunedin
PO Box 5045, Dunedin 9054
New Zealand
www.dunedin.govt.nz
 
 

From:  
Sent: Tuesday, 11 June 2024 9:36 am
To: Rebecca Murray <Rebecca.Murray@dcc.govt.nz>
Subject: Re: LGOIMA Request 1048459 Overdue



 
Deepest apologies, I put my date into a working days calculator but obviously must have made a
mistake. Sorry for any confusion.
 
I look forward to hearing from you.
 
Kind regards,
 

 
On Tue, 11 Jun 2024, 09:12 Rebecca Murray, <Rebecca.Murray@dcc.govt.nz> wrote:

Kia ora 
 
Thank you for your email.
 
The statutory timeframe for a LGOIMA request is 20 working days, your LGOIMA is due date is
17 June 2024 which takes into account King’s Birthday (3 June 2024) which is a public holiday.
 
Below is a link to the Ombudsman’s website which provides a 20 working days calculator for
LGOIMA due dates.  I have also provided below a snippy of the 20 working day due date
calculation for your LGOIMA.
 
https://www.ombudsman.parliament.nz/
 
 



 
I am in the process of collating and reviewing the information.
 
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
 
 
 
 

If this message is not intended for you please delete it and notify us immediately; you are warned that any further use,
dissemination, distribution or reproduction of this material by you is prohibited..

From:  
Sent: Monday, 10 June 2024 5:47 pm
To: Official Information <officialinformation@dcc.govt.nz>
Subject: LGOIMA Request 1048459 Overdue
 
Dear Dunedin City Council,
 
I filed LGOIMA Request 1048459 on Friday May 17. Over 20 working days have surpassed
since that date and you have not responded to that request, as you are legally required to.
 
Please contact me as soon as possible regarding this request.
 
Kind regards,

 
 

has submitted a LGOIMA request - 1048459.

Below are the details of the request

Request details:
Could you please provide access to the most recent risk assessment/s of the use of
glyphosate herbicides in Dunedin. Please feel free to email or call me regarding my
request. Kind regards, 



File attachment (file name)
No file uploaded

Name

Email address

Mailing address

Contact phone number
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HERBICIDES FOR VEGETATION CONTROL 
Department: Transport  

 

 

  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

1 This report responds to the resolution of the Planning and Environment Committee on 6 July 
2022 that requested a review of the use of herbicides, especially those containing glyphosate, 
for weed and vegetation control in Council operations, and what alternative vegetation control 
methods exist.  

2 The report also presents the findings of a staff literature review on the health or other risks 
associated with herbicide use.     

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Committee: 

a) Notes the Herbicides for Vegetation Control Report. 

 

BACKGROUND 

3 This report responds to the resolution from the Planning and Environment Committee on 6 July 
2022 where the Committee resolved: 

Moved (Cr David Benson-Pope/Cr Steve Walker): 

That the Committee: 

Requests that staff review the use, by Council departments and contractors, of herbicides 
(especially those containing glyphosate) for weed and vegetation control and report on any 
health or other risk and alternative products, where they exist. 

Motion carried (PLA/2022/011) 

DISCUSSION 

Herbicide Use 

4 The Dunedin City Council (DCC) is responsible for weed and vegetation control within road 
corridors, parks, reserves, cemeteries, landfills, around 3 Waters infrastructure and DCC 
property.  
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5 Herbicide sprays are the primary method used by DCC Contractors to control undesirable weeds 
and vegetation.     

6 Herbicides can be known by brand names, common names and chemical names. DCC 
contractors use many various product brands, and some may not be listed in the table below. 
Different branded products regularly contain other additives (often proprietary) to improve the 
product effectiveness. Contractors may also use additives to improve the sprays’ effectiveness 
for certain weed types.  

7 The table below identifies the main herbicides used by DCC contractors.  

Common name Typical Brand 
Names General Uses Approximate Yearly Volume of 

Usage (undiluted litres) 
Glyphosate1 · Roundup 

· KiwiGarden 

· Yates 

· WeedMaster 

· Orion 

· NuFarm 

Broad control of all 
weeds, primarily using 
sprays. Used on road 
shoulders, unlined 
surface water channels, 
lawn edges, kerb and 
channel, around 
buildings, footpaths. 

Transport:  3,500 

Parks and Recreation:  1,625 

Three Waters:  30 

Property:  28 

Picloram2 · Tordon 

· Triumph 

· Vigilant 

· Ken-Zon 

Spraying for pest plants, 
noxious weeds, woody 
weeds. 
Gel form, with brush 
applicators used for tree 
stumps/limbs to prevent 
regrowth.  

Transport:  100 

Parks and Recreation:  125 

Three Waters:  <5 

Property:  <2 

Benzalkonium 
Chloride3   

· MossBoss 

· Surrender 

· Moss and 
Mould Sorted 
Commercial 

Spraying to control moss 
and lichen. 

<10 combined 

Herbicide chemical names 
1 N-(Phosphonomethyl) glycine 
2 4-Amino-3,5,6-trichloro-2-pyridinecarboxylic acid 
3 Alkyldimethylbenzyl-ammonium chloride 

 

8 Glyphosate is the most widely used herbicide in the world, including in New Zealand. 

Herbicide Risks 

9 The following information on herbicide risks is based on a staff literature review.  Staff are not 
offering expert advice in this area and have not consulted with toxicology or other experts in 
preparing the information for the Committee.  Information from the staff literature review 
relevant to the Committee resolution, in chronological order, is as follows: 

10 The World Health Organisation International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) classified 
glyphosate as “probably carcinogenic to humans” in 2015. The report states “this was based on 
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‘limited’ evidence of cancer in humans (from real-world exposures that actually occurred) and 
‘sufficient’ evidence of cancer in experimental animals (from studies of ‘pure’ glyphosate)”. 

11 The New Zealand Environmental Protection Authority published a ‘Review of the Evidence 
Relating to Glyphosate and Carcinogenicity’ in August 2016. It concluded “glyphosate is unlikely 
to be genotoxic or carcinogenic to humans and does not require classification under HSNO 
[Hazardous Substances and New Organisms Act 1996] as a carcinogen or mutagen”. Since the 
August 2016 publication, the EPA has not changed this position.  

12 The toxicology risks of glyphosate came to prominence in 2018 and 2019 when American juries 
began awarding compensatory and punitive damages against Monsanto (the manufacturer of 
Roundup, which contains glyphosate) for failing to warn consumers that exposure to Roundup 
weed killer causes cancer.  The cases are still in appeal by Monsanto.   

13 Following the Monsanto lawsuits, a number of countries, states and districts across the world 
have either banned or attempted to restrict the use of glyphosate. A list of these can be 
reviewed via the link:  https://www.wisnerbaum.com/toxic-tort-law/monsanto-roundup-
lawsuit/where-is-glyphosate-banned-/. 

14 In respect to Christchurch City Council’s use of glyphosate, in 2020, University of Canterbury 
Professor of Toxicology Ian Shaw noted “for glyphosate to potentially cause cancer, which has 
been reported overseas, repeat doses over a long period of time would be needed and the risk 
of this was small”.  A paper by Professor Shaw on Roundup, published in the NZ Science Review 
Journal, is included as Attachment A. 

15 The EPA has recently published (May 2022) a Glyphosate in Aotearoa New Zealand Summary 
Report following a call for information on the herbicide. The EPA Summary Report is a first step 
in the EPA’s process to review the classification of the herbicide.  The Summary Report can be 
reviewed via the link: https://www.epa.govt.nz/assets/Uploads/Documents/Hazardous-
Substances/Glyphosate-call-for-information/Glyphosate-call-for-information-summary-report-
may22.pdf 

Herbicide Application 

16 As noted above, glyphosate is the most widely used herbicide in the world.  The EPA considers 
the product to be safe if applied in the accordance with regulations and guidelines. 

17 Industry and DCC staff experience show herbicides to be the most effective method for 
controlling weed and vegetation growth.   

18 All herbicide use by DCC contractors is in accordance with product Safety Data Sheets and New 
Zealand Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations and guidelines.  

19 Contractors prepare and adhere to Safe Operating Procedures (SOPs), which identify the 
controls and procedures for the safe application of herbicides. The SOPs refer to all relevant 
resources, including personal protective equipment to be used, appropriate application rates, 
and other procedures to be used by staff, which are based on regulations and industry best-
practise. When using herbicides, DCC Contractors take a precautionary approach to manage the 
associated risks.   

20 SOPs also manage ‘spray-drift’ risk ensuring that herbicide spraying only occurs in appropriate 
weather conditions to prevent contact with vegetation that should not be sprayed. 
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21 The New Zealand Agrichemical Education Trust (under the brand Growsafe) is a not-for-profit 
organisation promoting the safe, responsible and effective use of agrichemicals. Training and 
qualifications are provided through Growsafe. In addition to complying with EPA regulations and 
guidelines, DCC require its Contractors to be certified by Growsafe, and that all Growsafe 
standards are adhered to.  

Alternative Methods 

22 Alternative weed and vegetation control methods include: 

a) Manual pulling of weeds 
DCC contractors use this more labour-intensive alternative in garden areas and parks 
where spraying could affect desirable plants. This method is less cost effective where large 
areas of vegetation control are needed (such as road verges, surface water channels, 
edges, etc). Physical health risks from manual handling are a consideration with this 
method. 

b) Mechanical removal using tractor attachments, weed eaters, chainsaws, mowers etc 
Contractors routinely use these methods for vegetation control where the preference is 
to cut rather than kill. In comparison to spraying, a much greater frequency of treatment 
is required. These activities are used in amenity areas such as parks, road verges and 
sports fields where spraying (weed killing) is not a suitable control method.  

c) Bark nuggets or wood mulch 
This method used to prevent vegetation growth is already widely used in Parks and 
Recreation areas as soil coverage for gardens, and around trees.  

d) Thermal means such as steam, hot water, electrochemical and fire 
These methods have been trialled by DCC to control roadside vegetation but have proven 
to be less effective as the application frequency needs to be two to four times more often 
than herbicide sprays.  The equipment also requires the carting of a heating system and 
the requirement to carry a large volume of water. Some of these methods can also kill 
worms and insects.  

e) Organic herbicides 
These are products that have organic and natural properties, that are used in the same 
way as chemical herbicides. These sprays can be made from pine oils, fatty acids, salt and 
vinegar. Some of the products such as salt or vinegar can alter soil PH and be harmful to 
insects. Some products have very strong odours. All products are proven by industry 
experience to be less effective than glyphosate products. 

f) Alternative chemical herbicides 
The NZ EPA 2016 report lists the seven frequently used herbicides after glyphosate.  Based 
on the public feedback the EPA concluded “responders did not identify any one herbicide 
that is as safe, effective, and affordable as glyphosate and that could replace all its uses”. 

23 DCC has undertaken trials of alternative weed control methods in the past, as have other local 
authorities, including Christchurch City Council.  Staff are not aware of any reports that 
summarise the costs, effectiveness and environmental benefits of these trials.  Discussions with 
Christchurch City Council staff, industry professionals and experience from DCC trials indicates 
that herbicides are the most cost effective method for controlling weed and vegetation growth.   
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NEXT STEPS 

24 The New Zealand Environmental Protection Authority is the regulator of chemicals and 
hazardous substances in New Zealand. DCC and its contractors will continue to comply with all 
EPA regulations and guidance. 

25 Council departments will continue to use herbicides, taking a precautionary approach to it’s use, 
for weed and vegetation control. 

 

Signatories 

Author:  Ben Hogan - Transport Delivery Manager 
Authoriser: Jeanine Benson - Group Manager Transport 

Simon Drew - General Manager Infrastructure and Development  

Attachments 

 Title Page 
A Is it time to round up Roundup?  
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SUMMARY OF CONSIDERATIONS 
 

Fit with purpose of Local Government 

This decision enables democratic local decision making and action by, and on behalf of communities. 

Fit with strategic framework  

 Contributes Detracts Not applicable 
Social Wellbeing Strategy ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Economic Development Strategy ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Environment Strategy ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Arts and Culture Strategy ☐ ☐ ☒ 
3 Waters Strategy ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Spatial Plan ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Integrated Transport Strategy ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Parks and Recreation Strategy ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Other strategic projects/policies/plans ☐ ☐ ☒ 

Herbicide is used in Council operational activities and does not contribute to DCC Strategies. 

Māori Impact Statement 

Staff have not discussed the use of herbicides in Council operations with Mana whenua. 

Sustainability 

Staff are not aware of any sustainability implications with the use of herbicides in Council operations. 

LTP/Annual Plan / Financial Strategy /Infrastructure Strategy 

There are no known implications of noting this report.  

Financial considerations 

There are no known implications of noting this report.  

Significance 

The report is considered low in terms of the Council’s Significance and Engagement Policy. 

Engagement – external 

Staff discussed vegetation control experience with Christchurch City Council during the development 
of this report.  

Engagement - internal 

Parks and Recreation, 3-Waters, Property, Transport and Council contractors were consulted with in 
the development of this report. 

Risks: Legal / Health and Safety etc. 

The potential health risks of glyphosate, and their controls, are outlined in this report.   

Conflict of Interest 

There are no known conflicts of interest. 
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SUMMARY OF CONSIDERATIONS 
 

Community Boards 

The use of herbicides and the effectiveness of vegetation control methods will be of interest to all parts 
of the city, including those areas covered by Community Boards. 
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